Tioga County Industrial Development Agency Employee Handbook

October 2005
Revised February 2011
Revised December 7, 2011
Revised November 7, 2018
Revised March 2019

TIOGA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Sect	tion	Page
I.	INTRODUCTION	
	Changes in Policy	6
	Employment Relationship	
II.	EMPLOYMENT POLICIES	
	Definitions of Employment Status	
	Equal Opportunity	
	Employment of Relatives	
	Employment of Minors	
	Orientation Period for New Employees	
	Personnel Records	9
	Hours of Work and Time Records	
	Lunch and Rest Periods	
	Your Job Description	
	Performance Appraisals	
	Promotions and Job Posting	
	Resignation	
	Exit Interviews	11
III.	WAGE AND SALARY POLICIES	
••••	General Wage and Salary Policy	13
	Wage or Salary Increase Policy	
	Overtime Pay	
	Payroll Deductions	
	Paydays	
IV.	EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND SERVICES	4.0
	Group Insurance	
	FICA/Medicare	
	State Unemployment Insurance	
	State Disability Insurance	
	Workers' Compensation	
	Retirement Plan	17

TCIDA Employee Handbook Revised February 2011 Revised December 2017 Revised November 7, 2018 Revised March 2019

	Vacations	
	Holidays	
	Personal Leave	
	Sick Leave	19
	TCIDA EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK	
	TABLE OF CONTENTS, continued	
Sect	•	Page
IV. (Continued)	· ·
	Paid Personal Time Off	
	Bereavement	
	Jury Duty	19
	Leaves of Absence Without Pay	
	Family and Medical Leave	
	Military Service	
	Military Reserve Training	
	Personal	
	Medical Disability	
	Education Assistance	
	Job Counseling	
	Mileage	21
V.	EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS	
	Suggestions	23
	Complaint Handling Procedure	23
	Union-Free Employee Relations	
	Media Relations	23
VI.	EMPLOYEE SAFETY AND HEALTH	
	Fires and Emergencies	25
	Accidents or Injury	
	Life-Threatening Illnesses	
	Return to Work	25
	State of Emergency	26
VII.	STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND CORRECTIVE ACTION	
V 11.	Standards of Conduct	28
	Conflict of Interest	
	Harassment, Including Sexual Harassment	
	Attendance Standards	
	Absence without Notice	
	Alcohol and Drugs	
	Confidentiality	
	Dress and Personal Appearance	
	• •	3
		J

	Smoking	31
	Telephone/Voice Mail Use	
	Computer Hardware/Software Security	
	Computer Network Policies/Internet & E-mail Usage	32
VIII.	HANDBOOK RECEIPT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	
	INDEX	35

WELCOME TO THE TIOGA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The Tioga County Industrial Development Agency (TCIDA) Board of Directors would like to take this opportunity to welcome you to the TCIDA. The Board of Directors hopes your new job will live up to your expectations and your stay with the TCIDA will be a rewarding one. If you have been working for the TCIDA, the Board of Directors wishes to express their sincere appreciation for your valued service.

The TCIDA is pleased to provide you with your Employee Handbook, which outlines the personnel policies and practices in effect at the TCIDA. The handbook will be a helpful reference during your association with the TCIDA. Please feel free to ask questions of the Board of Directors, your immediate supervisors and co-workers.

Early in your employment with the TCIDA, you will realize that the Board of Directors has set very high standards for you. These are necessary if the TCIDA is to sustain Tioga County's growth and achievement in a highly competitive industry. At the same time, the TCIDA is committed to providing you with challenge, recognition, appropriate compensation, and benefits to help you reach your individual goals and objectives, as well as the goals of the TCIDA.

By working together in this way, the Board of Directors is confident that the future will be both productive and prosperous for all of us.

Sincerely,

Chair, TCIDA Board of Directors

I.

INTRODUCTION

I. INTRODUCTION

This handbook has been prepared to introduce you to the TCIDA. It will acquaint you with the policies, rules, pay and benefits that apply to all employees of the TCIDA.

The information contained in this handbook applies to all employees of the TCIDA except the Board of Directors. It is presented as a matter of information and guidance only and its contents should not be interpreted as a contract between the TCIDA and any of its employees.

Please read this handbook carefully and keep it available for reference. One of your first responsibilities is to be familiar with its contents. This handbook is only a summary of the TCIDA's policies, however, so please review it with any member of the TCIDA Employee Committee if you have any questions.

Changes in Policy

Since the TCIDA's business is constantly changing, the TCIDA expressly reserves the right to change any of our policies, including those covered here, at any time. Normally, the TCIDA will notify you of these changes by issuing new policy statements in writing. Changes will be effective on dates determined by the Board of Directors and you may not rely on policies that have been superseded. No one other than Board of Directors of the TCIDA has any authority to alter the foregoing.

If you are uncertain about any policy or procedure, please check with any member of the TCIDA Employee Committee.

Employment Relationship

Your employment with the TCIDA is "at-will" and entered into voluntarily. You are free to resign at any time, for any reason, with or without notice. Similarly, the TCIDA is free to conclude the employment relationship at any time.

* * * * * * *

This employee handbook supersedes all previous employee handbooks and management memos, which may have been issued on subjects covered herein.

II.

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

II. EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

Definitions of Employment Status

The following terms will be used to describe the classification of employees and their employment status:

Exempt- Employees whose positions meet specific tests established by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and applicable state law and who are exempt from overtime pay requirements.

Non-exempt- Employees whose positions do not meet FLSA and state exemption tests and who are paid a multiple of their regular rate of pay for hours worked in excess of 40 per week.

Full-time- Employees scheduled to work 35 hours or more per week.

Part time- Employees scheduled to work less than 35 hours per week. Those employees working fewer than 30 hours per week are ineligible for company benefits.

Orientation Period- New employees with less than 90 days of service.

Regular- Employees who have completed the orientation period.

Temporary- Employees who are hired for a pre-established period, usually during peak workloads or for vacation relief. They may work a full-time or part-time schedule. They are ineligible for TCIDA benefits and holiday pay. In no case will temporary employment exceed 9 months.

Equal Opportunity

The TCIDA maintains a policy of nondiscrimination with employees and applicants for employment. No aspect of employment with the TCIDA will be influenced in any manner by race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, physical or mental disability, or any other basis prohibited by statute. Further, the TCIDA reasonably accommodates persons with mental or physical disabilities as long as the accommodation doesn't cause the TCIDA undue hardship.

Employment of Relatives

The TCIDA has no general prohibition against hiring relatives. However, a few restrictions have been established to help prevent problems of safety, security, supervision and morale.

While the TCIDA will accept and consider applications for employment from relatives, close family members such as parents, grandparents, children, spouses, brothers and sisters, or in-laws generally will not be hired or transferred into positions where they directly or indirectly supervise or are supervised by another close family member. Further, such relatives generally will not be placed in positions where they work with or have access to sensitive information regarding a close family member or if there is an actual or apparent conflict of interest.

Employment of Minors

Generally, regular employees must be 18 years of age or older. Occasionally, the TCIDA will hire students or others who are 16 or 17 years old, but this must be approved in advance by the Board of Directors.

Orientation Period for New Employees

The orientation period for new employees lasts up to 90 days of work or eighteen (18) 5 day work weeks. During this time, you have your first opportunity to evaluate the TCIDA as a place to work, and the Board of Directors has the first opportunity to evaluate you as an employee. As during your regular employment, you and the TCIDA both have the right to terminate employment without advance notice and without cause.

The orientation period involves frequent evaluation of performance. Upon satisfactory completion of the orientation period, you will become a regular employee. All employees, regardless of classification, status or length of service, are expected to meet and maintain TCIDA standards for job performance and behavior.

Personnel Records

Important events in each employee's history with the TCIDA will be recorded and kept in the employee's personnel file. Regular performance reviews, changes of status records, commendations, corrective action warnings and educational attainment records are examples of records maintained.

Employee's personnel files are proprietary. The employee must submit, in writing, a request to the Chairman of the Board of Directors to review the file. The TCIDA will respond to the request within ten business days. The personnel file may then be reviewed by the employee only with the supervision of an officer of the Board of Directors (there may be no third party

involvement).

You are responsible for notifying the TCIDA Executive Administrator of changes in address, telephone number, and/or family status (births, marriage, death, divorce, legal separation, etc.), as income tax status and group insurance may be affected by these changes. This responsibility includes employees on lay-off status and leaves of absence.

Hours of Work and Time Records

The TCIDA normal workweek for administrative positions consists of thirty-five hours, worked seven hours per day for five consecutive weekdays. Any changes to this standard schedule must have prior approval from the Board of Directors.

In order to meet scheduling or other needs, the Board of Directors may need to change your schedule from time to time. Notice will be given as far in advance as possible.

If you must leave work early for any reason, notify the Chairman or his/her designee (see Attendance Standards and Absence without Notice, Page 26).

Lunch and Rest Periods

The lunch period for an office employee is one hour- typically taken from 12:00 p.m. to 1:00 p.m. Employees must not work longer than five and one half-hours without an uninterrupted meal period.

Your Job Description

The TCIDA uses job descriptions to aid in staffing, wage and salary administration and training. They also help employees and supervisors communicate about job responsibilities. However, job descriptions are not fixed TCIDA policy; they are only guidelines and can normally be expected to change over time.

From time to time, employees are expected to perform duties and handle responsibilities that are not part of their normal job. If, over the months, the new duties and responsibilities remain a significant part of the assignment, the job description may be changed.

Performance Appraisals

Normally, you will receive a performance appraisal by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors and two (2) others as recommended by the Board of Directors on or near your sixth and twelfth months of employment. Thereafter, in most cases, you will receive a performance appraisal once a year in the third quarter. The performance appraisal allows the Board of Directors to discuss your overall performance and summarize both formal and informal performance discussions held throughout the review period. It will review your strengths and also point out ways to improve your performance.

Promotions and Job Posting

The TCIDA has a policy of promoting from within whenever practical to fill open positions. The

1 .

TCIDA strives to promote the most capable and experienced individual, based on demonstrated ability to assume greater responsibility. At the same time, the TCIDA may need to recruit to attract the most qualified individual for a particular opening. Therefore, the TCIDA may post current job openings, excluding supervisory and management positions, on bulletin boards, with the steps to follow to apply for them. At the same time, the TCIDA may utilize outside recruiting sources.

Resignation

If you decide to leave the TCIDA, please advise any officer of the Board of Directors at least two weeks prior to your date of departure so that an orderly transition can be made. This process includes turning in TCIDA property, completing required forms, obtaining appropriate clearances, deleting computer access, and having an exit interview. Failure to adhere to this policy may result in the forfeiture of payment of unused accrued vacation.

Exit Interviews

In most cases, when you leave the TCIDA, you will have an exit interview with a designated representative of the Board of Directors on or before your last day. This exit interview documents the reasons you are leaving and solicits constructive feedback to improve the TCIDA.

III.

WAGE AND SALARY POLICIES

III. WAGE AND SALARY POLICIES

General Wage and Salary Policy

The TCIDA Board of Directors strives to pay salaries that are competitive with those in our community and industry, recognizing individual effort and contribution to TCIDA success.

The TCIDA wage and salary plan classifies each position based on:

- Knowledge and ability requirements
- Variety and scope of responsibilities
- Physical and mental demands

Salary ranges are normally reviewed once a year and adjusted as necessary. If you are interested in knowing the wage or salary range for your position, ask any officer of the Board of Directors.

Wage or Salary Increase Policy

Typically, your wage or salary rate will be reviewed once a year; more frequent reviews may occur based on extraordinary circumstances. If your work meets the requirements, you will receive an increase to the next level. Employees who are promoted to higher-grade positions have the opportunity to earn additional increases.

Overtime Pay

All overtime work by non-exempt employees must be authorized in advance by the Board of Directors. Non-exempt employees will be paid time and one-half for authorized hours worked in excess of thirty five hours in one week. The workweek is defined as Sunday-Saturday.

Payroll Deductions

Various payroll deductions are made each payday to comply with federal and state laws pertaining to taxes and insurance. Deductions will be made for the following:

■ Federal and State Income Tax Withholding

- Social Security (FICA)
- Other Items Designated by the Employee

You will be supplied with your Wage and Tax Statement (W-2) form according to the IRS deadlines. This statement summarizes your income and deductions for the year. If you have any questions regarding these deductions, please contact the TCIDA Executive Administrator.

Paydays

The payroll week runs from Sunday of one week through Saturday of the same week. Office employees are paid bi-weekly for all time worked through the preceding two weeks.

IV.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND SERVICES

IV. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND SERVICES

The TCIDA strives to provide a competitive package of employee benefit programs for its eligible employees.

The group health insurance program may be continued if you leave the TCIDA under circumstances described by federal law.

The existence of these employee benefits and plans, in and of themselves, does not signify that an employee will be employed for the requisite time necessary to qualify for these benefits and plans.

Group Insurance

The TCIDA makes available and pays a portion of the cost of health, dental and eye insurance for regular, full-time employees and their dependents. Benefits become effective after a ninety (90) day probationary period. An evaluation will be performed by the Governance Committee after sixty (60) days of full time continuous employment to determine employee need and/or desire for coverage. On the first day of the month following the sixty (60) evaluation, benefits become effective. For more details and official terms of these plans, contact the TCIDA Governance Committee Chairperson.

Health Insurance - the Board of Directors of the TCIDA will determine the health insurance plan used for coverage, as well as, the amount or percentage of the premium the qualified employee will contribute toward the monthly premium. If the health insurance plan has been determined and the employee is eligible for this coverage, the employee and each of their dependent(s) eligible for coverage will receive an insurance identification card. A policy will be issued describing coverage, as well as, your rights and responsibilities under the plan.

FICA/Medicare

All employees are covered by the federal Social Security Act. A required percentage of your salary is deducted from your paycheck to pay the employee's portion of this protection, and the TCIDA matches your deduction dollar for dollar. The plan is designed for your future security and that of your dependents and provides for retirement, disability, death, survivor and Medicare benefits.

State Unemployment Insurance

This program is funded entirely by employers in this state. The program provides weekly benefits if you become unemployed through no fault of your own or due to circumstances described in the law.

State Disability Insurance

This program provides for temporary disability benefits for employees in this state unable to work because of disability due to a non-occupational accident or illness. The program is financed through employer contributions and deductions from your paychecks. Benefits are not automatic. You must complete a form, obtained in the human resources department or from the treating physician, to receive benefits.

Workers' Compensation

The TCIDA carries insurance to cover the cost of work-incurred injury or illness. Benefits help pay for your medical treatment and part of any income you may lose while recovering. Depending on the circumstances of each case, the law prescribes specific benefits. To be assured of maximum coverage, work-related accidents must be reported immediately to any officer of the Board of Directors. The TCIDA will file a timely claim.

Retirement Plan

To help employees supplement their retirement income, this voluntary plan permits eligible employees to defer up to 6% of their earnings to a S.I.M.P.L.E. IRA plan. The TCIDA will match dollar for dollar of employee contribution up to 3% of the employee's annual income. Consult any officer of the Board of Directors if you have any questions.

Vacations

The vacation plan is designed to provide you with the opportunity to rest and get away from the everyday routine. This schedule is effective as of the adopted date of this handbook. If you are a regular, full-time employee, you accrue annual vacation at the following rates:

Length of Service	
0-6 months	none
6 month anniversary	5 days
1 year anniversary	5 days
2-5 year anniversary	10 days
6-12 year anniversary	15 days
13 year anniversary and over	20 days

After your one-year anniversary, vacation days are awarded as of January 1 of the anniversary year. Vacation days may be taken at any time after they are awarded consistent with office needs and with your supervisor's approval.

Regular, part-time employees who work 30 hours a week or more accrue vacation allowance on the same basis as full-time employees, except it is pro-rated according to the number of hours worked.

Vacations must be scheduled each year with the Board of Directors. To satisfy your preferences as well as meet the staffing needs of the department, discuss your vacation plans well in advance with the Board of Directors.

Vacations involving more than five (5) days of contiguous vacation (1 week) must be approved in advance by the Chairman of the Board of Directors or his/her designee.

All vacation time should be used by the end of the calendar year or carried over to the next year; however, you cannot carry over more than five days per year.

Under no circumstances will vacation time be afforded unless it has been accrued by the end of the calendar year.

In no case shall an employee accrue more than 20 days vacation on his/her anniversary date. Additional vacation time must have prior approval by the Board of Directors.

The TCIDA reserves the right to decide if any unused vacation will be awarded upon separation.

In the event the office building is closed during a scheduled vacation time, the Board of Directors will make a case by case determination with regard to the reinstatement of any vacation time.

Holidays

Regular, full-time employees are eligible for twelve paid holidays in each calendar year, following completion of the first 90-days of work, or eighteen (18) 5 day workweeks. To receive holiday pay, you must work the regularly scheduled workday before and after the holiday, unless any TCIDA officer approves an exception in writing. A paid holiday does not count as a day worked in calculating overtime for the week. If a holiday falls within the first 90 days of work, you will not be compensated for that holiday.

Holiday time will mirror the schedule of the hosting Tioga County schedule. These holidays are typically as listed:

Holidays
New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Day
Presidents Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Columbus Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Day

One Floating Holiday

Employees must schedule their floating holiday with the Chair of the Board of Directors or his/her designee. Once you submit your resignation or if you separate from the TCIDA for any reason and have not taken your floating holiday, you are not entitled to schedule or use it.

When a TCIDA holiday falls on Sunday, typically the following Monday will be observed as the holiday. If a holiday falls on Saturday, typically the proceeding Friday will be observed as the holiday.

Personal Leave

Employees receive 3 personal days a year to be used during the year, which can not be carried over to subsequent years. The personal days must be approved by the Chair of the Board of Directors, or his/her designee, and can not be used as vacation days. Half days are allowed. In the first calendar year of employment personal days are prorated based on the following chart:

Date of Hire	Personal Days
Jan 1- April 30	3
May 1- August 31	2
September 1- December 31	1

Sick Leave

Employees may earn one sick day a month as long as no unpaid leave of absence in excess of five working days or no unauthorized leave is taken. A doctor's excuse may be requested by the Chair or his/her designee. Any employee hired after the fifteenth of the month will not earn a day for that month. Employees may accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of sick time.

The TCIDA encourages employees to accumulate sick leave so it is available to help in the event of a long illness. Sick leave may be used to care for a family member. Accumulated sick days by not be used as vacation.

Time paid for sick leave does not count as time worked in calculating overtime for the week. Upon termination of employment, sick days will not be paid.

Paid Personal Time Off

Bereavement. In the event of death in your immediate family, you may have time needed up to three working days, with pay, to handle family affairs and attend the funeral. "Immediate family" is defined as current spouse, (step) children, (step) parents, (step) grandparents, (step) brothers, (step) sisters, mother-in-law or father-in-law.

Jury Duty. So that you may serve on a jury, please bring proof of jury duty to the Board of Directors as soon as received. In the event that you are dismissed at a time that you can reasonably report to work for the remainder of your workday, you will be expected to do so. In the event you are called to serve, the TCIDA will pay the employees regular salary and any stipend payments made to the employee will be turned over to the TCIDA. There will be no limit to the number of days served.

Leaves of Absence without Pay

Public Employees Law may grant leaves of absence without pay and/or at the TCIDA's discretion to eligible employees to maintain continuity of service in instances where unusual or unavoidable circumstances require prolonged absence.

Leaves of absence without pay are of the following types:

Family and Medical Leave - Eligible employees may be granted up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave per year for: newborn or newly adopted children, a serious health condition of a child, spouse, or parent, or a serious health condition of their own.

Military Service - For the duration of required service. For details on re-employment rights under the Federal Military Selective Service Act, see the TCIDA Executive Administrator.

Military Reserve Training - Up to two weeks per year. At your option, this training may be combined with paid vacation time.

Personal - Up to 30 days for compelling personal reasons. Approval is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and is based on department work requirements, your performance history and other business considerations.

Medical Disability - Up to 120 days for medical disability upon evidence that the employee has qualified for disability benefits by way of the New York State disability plan. The specific period must be supported by a physician's statement.

While no loss of service credit occurs during an approved leave of absence, there are other factors to consider such as benefit continuation, reinstatements and approval processes. See the TCIDA Executive Administrator for these details.

Education Assistance

The TCIDA education assistance program is designed to provide employees with financial support to pursue specific courses and educational programs, which will enhance their professional skills in current or future work-related areas. Regular, full-time employees with one or more years of employment may be reimbursed up to 75% for pre-approved tuition costs, enrollment fees and books for courses taken at a recognized institution, as well as for travel

expenses, mileage and meals. A recognized institution is an accredited college providing a degree or professional certification program providing a certification in an applicable field. Educational Assistance does not include state trade seminars or conferences the TCIDA may ask the employee to attend. There are requirements for pre-approval and successful completion, as well as other details, so please see any officer of the Board of Directors for more information before making definite plans or commitments.

If an employee severs their relationship with the TCIDA, for any reason, they will be required to reimburse the TCIDA according to the following schedule:

Leaves within one year of employment - 100% reimbursement Leaves after one year, before the 2nd year of employment - 50% reimbursement Leaves after two years, before the 3rd year of employment - 25% reimbursement Leaves after three years, before 4th year of employment - 0% reimbursement

Job Counseling

If you are concerned about your job performance, or if you wish to talk about job prospects in line with your career interests and abilities, you may arrange for a counseling discussion with any officer of the Board of Directors. Such a discussion will be confidential and will in no way jeopardize your present position or future with the TCIDA.

Mileage

Occasionally, you may be required to run business errands or attend meetings or conferences that are held outside of your office. The current IRS mileage rate will be reimbursed to TCIDA employees for all travel. An expense report stating purpose of travel, date, and mileage shall be completed prior to reimbursement.

٧.

EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS

V. EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS

Suggestions

The Board of Directors encourages you to suggest methods to improve quality and efficiency in the TCIDA. Submit your suggestions in writing to the Board of Directors. Your suggestions should be detailed so that the system or procedure can be adequately evaluated.

Complaint Handling Procedure

Under normal conditions, if you have a job-related problem, question or complaint, you should discuss it with any member of the TCIDA Employee Committee. The simplest, quickest and most satisfactory solution will often be reached at this level.

If the discussion with the TCIDA Employee Committee does not answer your question or resolve the matter to your satisfaction, you may then present your complaint, orally or in writing, to the Board of Directors who will render a final decision on the matter after an appropriate investigation.

When the issue personally involves any member of the Employee Committee, with whom you would ordinarily discuss a problem, you may bypass that individual and proceed to the Board of Directors without fear of reprisal.

Difficulties in using this complaint procedure should be brought to the attention of the Board of Directors.

Union-Free Employee Relations

The TCIDA is union free. The policies and practices emphasize open-door practices in which you are encouraged to deal directly with the TCIDA Employee Committee regarding any employment issues. The TCIDA believes your needs and ours are best met with open and frank communication between parties working toward a joint goal.

Media Relations

Because much of the information the TCIDA works with is confidential or sensitive, **all** contacts with the media must be referred to the TCIDA Chairperson or his/her designee. Prior to publication or presentation, the Board of Directors must approve all papers, articles, speeches or presentations to non-IDA persons.

VI.

EMPLOYEE SAFETY AND HEALTH

VI. EMPLOYEE SAFETY AND HEALTH

The TCIDA strives to provide safe working conditions for our employees. The TCIDA observes all safety laws of the governments within whose jurisdictions the TCIDA operates. No one will knowingly be required to work in any unsafe manner. Safety is every employee's responsibility, and all employees are expected to do everything reasonable and necessary to keep the TCIDA a safe place to work.

Fires and Emergencies

IN CASE OF EMERGENCY DIAL 9-911.

The facility where you work has an emergency procedure to follow in the event of fire or disaster. Exits, fire extinguishers and first-aid kits are located throughout the facility. Exits and areas around fire extinguishers must be kept clear at all times.

Accidents or Injury

No matter how insignificant an on the job injury may seem when it occurs, notify the Chairperson of the TCIDA or his/her designee immediately.

Life-Threatening Illnesses

The TCIDA is committed to providing equal opportunity to all employees, including those who have a life-threatening illness (cancer, AIDS, cardio-pulmonary diseases, etc.). The TCIDA is also committed to providing a safe work environment that meets or exceeds state and federal regulations. Consequently, employees who have a life-threatening illness will be treated like other employees as long as they meet performance standards, and medical and other evidence indicates that their condition is not a threat to others in the workplace.

The TCIDA also believes all information regarding an employee with a life-threatening illness must remain private and confidential. The TCIDA asks all employees to treat employees with a life-threatening illness with compassion and understanding.

Return to Work

If you are on a disability or medical disability leave of absence, you must return to work when your physician or a TCIDA-appointed physician determines that you are able to resume normal duties. The TCIDA requires your physician's release before reinstatement to the active payroll. If you wish to extend your leave beyond this point, you must apply for a personal leave of absence.

A physician's release may also be required when returning to work from sick leave or other, short-term, medically related absences. The Board of Directors will advise you of this requirement, which depends on case-by-case circumstances.

State of Emergency

In the event County officials call for a State of Emergency and prohibit travel, you will not be required to report to work until the State of Emergency has been lifted by the County.

VII.

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND CORRECTIVE ACTION

VII. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND CORRECTIVE ACTION

Groups of people who are working together for any purpose require certain guidelines pertaining to their conduct and relationships. Accordingly, TCIDA employees must be aware of their responsibilities to the TCIDA and to co-workers.

The TCIDA strives to take a constructive approach to disciplinary matters to insure that actions, which would interfere with operations or an employee's job, are not continued.

The TCIDA reserves the right to search employee personal effects such as lunch boxes, purses, tool boxes, desks, lockers, etc., on TCIDA premises.

Violations of the TCIDA standards will result in one of the following forms of corrective action: discharge, suspension, oral warning or written warning. In arriving at a decision for proper action, the following will be considered:

- The seriousness of the infraction and its impact on the TCIDA goals
- The past record of the employee
- The circumstances surrounding the matter

Although there is no way to identify every possible violation of standards of conduct, the following is a **partial** list of infractions, which will result in corrective action:

- Falsifying employment application, timecard, or personnel or other company documents or records.
- Unauthorized possession of TCIDA or employee property, gambling, carrying weapons or explosives, or violating criminal laws on TCIDA premises.
- Fighting, throwing things, horseplay, practical jokes or other disorderly conduct which may endanger the well being of any employee on TCIDA premises.
- Engaging in acts of dishonesty, fraud, theft or sabotage.
- Threatening, intimidating, coercing, using abusive or vulgar language, or interfering with the performance of other employees.
- Insubordination or refusals to comply with instructions or failure to perform reasonable duties which are assigned.
- Unauthorized use of TCIDA material, time, equipment or property.
- Damaging or destroying TCIDA property due to careless or willful acts.

- Performance which, in the TCIDA's opinion, does not meet the requirements of the position.
- Engaging in such other practices as the TCIDA determines may be inconsistent with the ordinary and reasonable rules of conduct necessary to the welfare of the TCIDA, its employees, or clients.
- Conduct, which the TCIDA feels, reflects adversely on the employee or TCIDA.
- Negligence in observing fire prevention and safety rules.
- Other circumstance for which the TCIDA feels that corrective action is warranted.

This list is intended to be representative of the types of activities which may result in disciplinary action. It is not intended to be comprehensive and does not alter the employment-at-will relationship between the employee and the TCIDA. **Additional standards of conduct are described in the sections below.**

Conflict of Interest

The TCIDA expects our employees to conduct business according to the highest ethical standards of conduct. Employees are expected to devote their best efforts to the interests of the TCIDA and the conduct of its affairs.

Business dealings that represent, or appear to represent, a conflict between the interests of the TCIDA and an employee are unacceptable. The TCIDA recognizes the right of employees to engage in activities outside of their employment, which is of a private nature and unrelated to our business. However, a policy of full disclosure must be followed to assess and prevent potential conflicts of interest from arising. Contact any officer of the Board of Directors if you have questions regarding a possible conflict of interest or outside work. Also, you may be asked to complete a questionnaire dealing with conflict of interest once each year.

Harassment, Including Sexual Harassment

Employers interested in human dignity and protection of their employees are particularly concerned about the possibility of employee harassment, whether sexual, racial, ethnic or other type. Harassment in any form - verbal, physical or visual - is strictly against TCIDA policy and will result in corrective action. Defining sexual harassment precisely is not easy but it certainly includes slurs, threats, derogatory comments, unwelcome jokes, exposure to sexually oriented literature or pictures, teasing or sexual advances, and other similar verbal or physical conduct. If you believe you have been the victim of harassment, or know of one who has, report it immediately to any member of the TCIDA Employee Committee or the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Attendance Standards

Punctuality and regular attendance are essential to the proper operation of any business. These also help you to establish a good working reputation and add to your opportunity for advancement.

If you are unable to report for work for any reason, if you will arrive late, or must leave early, for informational purposes you will notify the Chairperson of the TCIDA or his/her designee, before starting time. Upon your return to work, the Chairperson must be informed of the absence or other deviation from schedule.

The TCIDA reserves the right to require a physician's release when an employee returns to work following a disability.

Absence without Notice

For the TCIDA to operate business effectively, the Board of Directors asks that you keep them informed of your status when you are off work because of illness or accident from any cause. If you fail to notify them after three days of consecutive absence, they will presume you have resigned, and you will be removed from the payroll. Likewise, you must call any officer of the Board of Directors once a week while off work due to short-term illness or accident, or we will presume you have resigned, and you will be removed from the payroll.

Alcohol and Drugs

The TCIDA recognizes that alcohol and drug abuse in the work place has become a major concern. The TCIDA believes that by reducing drug and alcohol use it will improve the safety, health and productivity of employees. The object of the TCIDA's alcohol and drug policy is to provide a safe and healthy work place for all employees, to comply with federal and state health and safety regulations, and to prevent accidents.

The use, possession, sale, transfer, purchase or being under the influence of illegal drugs or other intoxicants by employees at any time on TCIDA premises is prohibited. The illegal use of any drug, narcotic or controlled substance is prohibited. Employees must not report for duty or be on TCIDA property while under the influence of, any intoxicating liquor, marijuana or illegally obtained drug, narcotic or other illegal substance. Employees are expected to report for work in a state that will allow them to complete the tasks for the day.

Alcohol may be available at certain events or social functions in which the Tioga County Industrial Development Agency participates. While the consumption of alcohol at these events does not violate this policy, the TCIDA Board of Directors expects employees to self-monitor the quantity consumed and its influence.

Confidentiality

During the course of your employment here, you will be working with our customers, customer lists, business systems, future plans and other information that the TCIDA considers confidential. Maintaining this confidentiality is important to our competitive position in the industry and, ultimately, to our ability to achieve financial success and provide employment stability. Protect this information by safeguarding it when in use, filing it properly when not in use, and discuss it only with those who have a legitimate business need to know.

Dress and Personal Appearance

Employees are expected to maintain an appropriate appearance that is businesslike, neat and clean, as determined by the requirements of the work area. Dress and appearance should not be offensive to customers or other employees. Appropriate appearance includes:

Apparel. Generally, you should wear appropriate, clean, pressed business casual attire appropriate to the task at hand. Public meetings and presentations require professional attire.

Hair. Hair should be clean, combed and neatly trimmed or arranged. This also pertains to sideburns, moustaches and beards. Shaggy, unkempt hair is not permissible.

Personal Hygiene. Good personal hygiene habits must be maintained.

Smoking

For reasons of safety, public relations, and other concerns, smoking is prohibited on TCIDA premises.

Telephone/Voice Mail Use

TCIDA telephones are to be used for business purposes in serving the interests of our customers and in the course of normal TCIDA operations. Answer all calls promptly and courteously. On occasion, personal calls may be necessary, but the TCIDA asks your cooperation in limiting them to emergencies or essential personal business and in keeping them brief.

The TCIDA has invested in a Voice Mail System for efficiency and to better serve our customers. Learn how to use this system by reading the voice mail manual or asking the TCIDA Executive Administrator.

From time to time, especially when you are on vacation, business trips and leaves of absence,

the TCIDA Executive Administrator, an officer of the Board of Directors, or another employee may listen to your voice mail messages to better serve the TCIDA customers and other business needs. You should not expect messages left on your voice mail to be totally private.

Computer Hardware/Software Security

TCIDA equipment including computer hardware and software are valuable assets. They must be used for TCIDA business only. You may not copy or use TCIDA purchased/leased software contrary to the provisions of the contract.

From time to time, especially when you are on vacation, business trips and leaves of absence, the TCIDA Executive Administrator, an officer of the Board of Directors, or another employee may access your computer or files to better serve TCIDA customers and other business needs. You should not expect information left on your computer or files to be totally private.

Computer Network Policies/Internet & E-mail Usage

TCIDA computers are networked to the County IT systems and, therefore, all users must abide accordingly to the County's Network Policies and Procedures – Policy 43. It is every user's responsibility to utilize IT resources appropriately and ensure its security. All data, information, records and software on County resources are the property of the County. Users should have no expectation of privacy in their use of County computer resources. The use of Tioga County Internet access facilities should be considered a privilege and not a right. This privilege is given with the expectation that users will demonstrate consideration and respect for others and voluntarily comply with County usage guidelines. Inappropriate usage of Internet services or violation of these policies and guidelines may result in the revocation of access. As an authorized user on the County network, TCIDA employees are forbidden to install, upgrade or move IT resources without IT management approval. Only authorized equipment is to have a permanent physical connection to County networks and no software shall be installed without approval of the IT Director.

VIII.

HANDBOOK RECEIPT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

HANDBOOK RECEIPT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I have received a copy	y of the TCIDA handbook dated	·
and follow it during my	ns policies and rules, which apply to rely employment with the TCIDA. I further, changes will be communicated to me	er understand it may be amended at
	Employee Signature	Date
	Employee Name (Printe	ed)
	Witness Signature	Date

Please keep a copy of this acknowledgement for your records.

INDEX

A Absence Without Notice, 30 Accidents or Injury, 25 Alcohol and Drugs, 30 Attendance Standards, 30	Leaves of Absence Without Pay, 20 Life-Threatening Illnesses, 25 Lunch and Rest Periods, 10 M Media Polations, 23
B Bereavement, 19	Media Relations, 23 Medical Disability, 20 Mileage, 21 Military Service, Leave of Absence, 20
C Changes in Policy, 6 Complaint Handling Procedure, 23	Military Reserve Training Leave, 20 O
Computer Hardware/Software Security, 32 Computer Network/Internet & E-mail Usage, 32 Confidentiality, 31 Conflict of Internet 20	Orientation Period for New Employees, 9 Overtime Pay, 13
Conflict of Interest, 29 D	Paid Personal Time Off, 19 Paydays, 14
Definitions of Employment Status, 8 Dress and Personal Appearance, 31 _	Payroll Deductions, 13 Performance Appraisals, 10 Personal Leave of Absence, 20
E Education Assistance, 20 Employee Benefits and Services, 16 Employee Communications, 23	Personal Leave, 19 Personnel Records, 9 Promotions and Job Posting, 10
Employee Safety and Health, 25 Employment of Relatives, 9 Employment of Minors, 9	Q Quit, See Resignation, 11
Employment Policies, 8 Employment Relationship, 6 Equal Opportunity, 8 Exit Interviews, 11	R Resignation, 11 Retirement Plan, 17 Return to Work, 25
F Family and Medical Leave, 20	S Safety and Health, 25
Fires and Emergencies, 25 FICA/Medicare, 16	Salary Policy, 13 Sick Leave, 19 Smoking, 31
G General Wage and Salary Policy, 13 Group Insurance, 16	Standards of Conduct & Corrective Action, 28 State Disability Insurance, 16 State of Emergency, 26
H Handbook Not a Contract, 6	State Unemployment Insurance, 16 Suggestions, 23
Handbook Receipt and Acknowledgment, 34 Harassment, Including Sexual Harassment, 29 Health, Dental & Eye Insurance, 16	T Telephone/Voice Mail Use, 31
Holidays, 18 Hours of Work and Time Records, 10	U Union-Free Employee Relations, 23
l Introduction, 6	V Vacations, 17
J Job Counseling, 20 Jury Duty, 19	W Wage and Salary Policies, 13 Wage or Salary Increase Policy, 13 Workers' Compensation, 17
L	

Y Your Job Description, 10